
Forsyth City Council meeting – July 07, 2015 Page 1 
 

 

MINUTES    

FORSYTH CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

JULY 07, 2015 

CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, INVOCATION 

Mayor Howard called the meeting to order at 6:02PM and led the pledge of allegiance.   

Mr. Melton gave the invocation.   

ROLL CALL 

Present for the meeting were Mayor Howard, Councilmembers Mike Dodd, Julius Stroud, 

Greg Goolsby, Jimmy Jones, Eric Wilson, and Melvin Lawrence.  Also present were City Attorney, 

Bobby Melton; City Manager, Janice Hall; Interim City Clerk, Kristal Dunn.   

COUNCIL ACTION ITEMS 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING AND WORK 

SESSION 

Mr. Wilson offered a motion to approve the minutes from the June 16th Council Meeting 

and Work Session.  Seconded by Mr. Stroud; the motion carried unanimously (voting in the 

affirmative were Dodd, Stroud, Goolsby, Wilson, Jones and Lawrence).  

VALOR AWARD PRESENTATION BY CHIEF DAVID HERNDON 

 Chief Herndon came before Council and Mayor to present three City Firefighters, Deputy 

Chief Davis Norris, Firefighter/Paramedic Chris Andrews and Firefighter/EMT Justin Hammond, 

with the Medal of Valor Award for performance that was above and beyond the call of duty at 

extreme personal risk and having been instrumental in rescuing and saved another person’s life.  

Two Monroe County Firefighters, Firefighter Matt Millwood and Jason Smith, were awarded the 

Valor Ribbon during the Forsyth City Council meeting for performance above and beyond the call 

of duty at extreme personal risk.  Monroe County Firefighter Jack Adams was awarded the Unit 

Citation Ribbon for performance beyond normal expectations in an emergency situation.  City of 

Forsyth Fire Chief David Herndon was recognized for his leadership role during the incident.  The 

awards were given to honor the acts of the firefighters involved in the incident occurring on June 

15, 2015 where a man had to be rescued form a vehicle that was under a mobile home.  The vehicle 

had severed a natural gas line and was on top of the free flowing gas line.  The firefighters did not 

hesitate to enter the vehicle and remove the driver of the vehicle.  Firefighter/Paramedic Chris 

Andrews, Firefighter/EMT Justin Hammond, Firefighter/EMT Daniel Fullmore and Mrs. Marcia 

English were also recognized for their quick action that resulted in a Life Saved.  On Saturday June 

27, 2015, Rescue 101 was dispatched to a man down in Ingles, with CPR in progress.  Rescue 101 

and Engine 101 responded and located the victim to find Mrs. Marcia English performing CPR on 



Forsyth City Council meeting – July 07, 2015 Page 2 
 

 

the victim.  The fire crew assumed CPR and quickly placed AED on the patient.  After a series of 

shocks by AED and the continuation of CPR the patient had a pulse when ambulance arrived.  This 

incident will be submitted to the State EMS Region Office for a Cardiac Arrest Save and to the 

American Heart Association for recognition. 

ROBERT TRAYLOR – APPLICATION FOR BEER/WINE/LIQUOR POURING LICENSE 

FOR 52 LOVERS LANE – PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON JUNE 2, 2015  

Mrs. Hall stated that this had been tabled from June 2, because the applicants were not 

present and questions were not answered.  Mr. Melton stated that the applicants were still not 

present and that the application was still incomplete, so the application should be denied.  Mr. 

Wilson offered a motion that the application for beer/wine/liquor pouring license for 52 Lovers 

Lane be denied.  Seconded by Mr. Stroud.  Mrs. Hall asked Mr. Melton if since the application has 

been denied, if there is a stipulation in the ordinance that the applicants would have to wait six (6) 

months before reapplying.  Mr. Wilson asked if the applicants were to come in and answer all the 

questions that needed answered, could it be approved.  Mr. Melton stated no it could not.  Hearing 

no further discussion, the motion carried unanimously (voting in the affirmative were Dodd, Stroud, 

Goolsby, Wilson, Jones and Lawrence).  

JOHN WALTON – REQUEST TO CLOSE PORTION OF PARSON STREET ON AUGUST 

8, 2015 FOR 1ST ANNUAL MONROE FEST TO BE HELD AT KYNETTE PARK AND 

KYNETTE COMMUNITY CENTER 

 Mr. Walton came before the Mayor and Council to ask that a portion of Parson Street and 

the one way street that intersects Parsons Street be closed on August 8 for the 1st Annual Monroe 

Fest.  Mr. Walton asked about having police officers available to help control the flow of traffic.  

Mr. Stroud asked if Mr. Walton had talked to any of the residents surrounding Kynette Park and 

Mr. Walton stated that he had talked to a few, but would be talking to the rest soon.  Mr. Walton 

asked about the stage and Mrs. Hall stated that he would need to see Lorraine Khoury, Mr. Walton 

asked if it would be fine if he arraigned for a mobile stage.  The Mayor asked that any help that 

Chief Corley can provide will be appreciated.  Mr. Goolsby offered a motion to close portion of 

Parson Street and the one way street on August 8, for the 1st Annual Monroe Fest.  Seconded by Mr. 

Jones; the motion carried unanimously (voting in the affirmative were Dodd, Stroud, Goolsby, 

Wilson, Jones and Lawrence).  Mr. Jones thanked Mr. Walton for doing what he is doing for the 

citizens of Forsyth. 

MABLE BENTLEY – REQUEST FROM ST. PAUL A.M.E. CHURCH TO HAVE FEE 

WAIVED TO HOLD EVENTS AT KYNETTE COMMUNITY CENTER 

 Mrs. Hall stated that Ms. Bentley was not present at this time but was looking to have a 

regular event for the kids at Kynette Park.  Mrs. Hall stated that Ms. Bentley would like for the 



Forsyth City Council meeting – July 07, 2015 Page 3 
 

 

Mayor and Council to waive the fee of $20.00 per hour, because the Church could not afford it.  

Mr. Jones asked for Mr. Melton’s opinion.  Mr. Melton stated that he did not think it is something 

the Council and Mayor should do because it is considered a gratuity.  Mr. Stroud stated that if it 

was a faith based nonprofit organization, he felt that they should only have to pay a deposit and get 

the deposit back if they cleaned up the property and nothing was broken.  Mr. Jones stated that he 

felt the City’s hands were tied because it was a state law.  Mr. Melton stated that there was nothing 

in the provisions to allow for it.  Mr. Stroud stated that he had a hard time accepting that if someone 

wants to help the community there was nothing that could be done.  Mr. Wilson offered a motion 

for a $75.00 deposit and $25.00 day.  Seconded by Mr. Stroud.  The Mayor asked about Mr. Walton 

who has just been approved to close streets at Kynette Park.  Mr. Melton stated that if the motion 

was approved it would become effective now.  Mr. Stroud stated that if nothing was broken and 

everything was cleaned up the applicants would get their deposit back.  Ms. Bentley came in late 

due to work, but stated that they were not sure how long they would need the building.  Mr. Jones 

explained to Ms. Bentley that is was against state law to waive the fee just for the Church, but they 

could change the fee to $25.00/day with a $75.00 returnable deposit.  Mr. Goolsby thanked Ms. 

Bentley for what she is doing with the community.  Mr. Hall asked Ms. Bentley to come by City 

Hall and pick up an application to reserve the building.  The motion carried unanimously, (voting in 

the affirmative were Dodd, Stroud, Goolsby, Jones, Wilson and Lawrence).  

APPOINT CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS 

Mrs. Hall stated that in the Charter, Section 3.13 it stated the City Council shall designate a 

Custodian of Records who shall not be a Council Member, but may the City Clerk or another 

regular employee of the City.  This individual shall be custodian of the Official City Seal and City 

Records, and shall maintain City Council Records required by this charter.  Mrs. Hall stated that she 

would recommend Kristal Dunn who is the Interim City Clerk to be appointed at the Custodian of 

Records.  Mr. Jones offered a motion to appoint Kristal Dunn/Interim City Clerk as the Custodian 

of Records.  Seconded by Mr. Stroud, the motion carried unanimously, (voting in the affirmative 

were Dodd, Stroud, Goolsby, Jones, Wilson and Lawrence).   

APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION RELATING TO THE DESIGNATION OF 

DEPARTMENTAL COMMITTEES IN CODES, ORDINANCES, POLICES, AND 

PROCEDURES TO MEAN AN APPOINTED AD HOC COMMITTEE 

Mrs. Hall stated that the Council needed to approve this resolution so that where 

Departmental Committees is referenced in the Codes, Ordinances, Polices it will mean an appointed 

Ad Hoc Committee.  Mr. Jones offered a motion to approve the resolution.  Seconded by Mr. 

Stroud.  Mr. Wilson asked if there would be an Ad Hoc Committee for each Departmental 

Committee.  Mr. Melton stated that the Mayor can appoint an Ad Hoc Committee and once the 



Forsyth City Council meeting – July 07, 2015 Page 4 
 

 

issue was dealt with the committee would be dissolved.  The motion carried unanimously, (voting 

in the affirmative were Dodd, Stroud, Goolsby, Jones, Wilson and Lawrence).   

AWARD RFQ FOR TOBESOFKEE BRIDGE REPAIR 

Mrs. Hall stated that there were specific requests in the RFQ and that Calibration Controls 

& Automation was the only one out of the three that submitted a complete bid.  Mrs. Hall 

recommended that Calibration Controls & Automation be awarded the bid, with a bid of $20,200.  

Mr. Goolsby offered a motion to award the RFQ for the Tobesofkee Bridge Repair to Calibration 

Controls & Automation.  Seconded, by Mr. Lawrence, the motion carried unanimously, (voting in 

the affirmative were Dodd, Stroud, Goolsby, Jones, Wilson and Lawrence).   

APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICE 

 Mrs. Hall reviewed invoice totals for each department for a total of $133,753.57 for 

general payables, none for Seized and none for SPLOST/GRANT payables; for a grand total of 

$133,753.57.  Mr. Wilson offered a motion to approve the invoices.  Seconded by Mr. Jones, the 

motion carried unanimously (voting in the affirmative were Dodd, Stroud, Goolsby, Wilson, Jones 

and Lawrence).   

AMENDED AGENDA 

-  Mayor Howard stated that he would like to amend the Agenda to recognize 

Representative Robert Dickey who was present at the meeting.  Rep. Dickey stated that 

he just wanted to stop by and let the Mayor and Council know that if they needed 

anything to get in touch with him. 

ADDITIONAL COUNCIL ITEMS: 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

- Spoke with Lori Andrews regarding property tax bills; she is researching the idea of 

having split billing for property taxes; bills would go out in August, with ½ due in 

September and the remainder due in December.  Would like feedback from council and 

citizens as to whether or not you feel this is a good idea and if it would be beneficial to 

the tax payers. Would not have the option to pay all in December – if ½ not paid in 

September would receive a 5% penalty.  Will have to get tax assessor’s office on board 

if change as this would place a burden on them to have the assessments done and 

everything ready for millage rates to be advertised and set before bills go out in August.  

- Discussed with Mayor Howard the process for the work sessions for the 2nd meeting of 

each month; would like to begin at 5 pm and hold meeting to one hour, then have 

abbreviated council meeting at 6 pm to approve invoice payments and to approve any 

items from the work session if there should be any but would not put any additional 



Forsyth City Council meeting – July 07, 2015 Page 5 
 

 

items on the agenda unless absolutely necessary.  This would hopefully keep the two 

meetings to less than 2 hours. 

- Administrative ordinance – Regional Commission reviewed the changes that they 

proposed and Council has been provided a final draft of those changes along with the 

ones discussed during the work session.  Need to know if everyone is ready to move 

forward with the amended ordinance as you have it, if you would like an additional 

review at a work session, or how you would like to proceed so that we can get the 

public hearing advertised.  If no changes, we can begin the advertisement next week 

and hold the public hearing on August 4th.  Consensus to move forward with 

advertising.  

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

- Mr. Melton stated he just wanted to commend the Council and Mayor for acting like 

representative of the people.  Mr. Melton stated you had a snag in the law and you 

worked with it to come up with a solution. 

MAYOR’S REPORT 

- Mayor Howard read a letter from Patrick Ford, a 13 year old, asking for a skate park.  

Mayor Howard stated the letter from Patrick stated how there was nothing for the kids 

to do in Forsyth and thought a Skate Park would be a great idea.  Mr. Jones asked that 

an RFQ be done for a Skate Park and that maybe an Ad Hoc Committee could be 

appointed to see what can be done in Forsyth for the kids. 

ADDITIONAL COUNCIL BUSINESS AND REPORTS 

- Mr. Stroud stated that he just wanted the taxpayers that may watch the Council Meeting 

broadcast to know that they learned a lot at the GMA Conference and feels that it was a 

success as a learning point of view.  Mr. Stroud asked that the sidewalks on Highway 

41 and MLK be looked at due to the weeds and thick brush.  Mr. Stroud stated that it 

might be a good idea to look at streaming the meetings live on the website.  Mayor 

Howard stated that his feelings were mutual about steaming the meetings live. 

- Mr. Wilson asked how things were looking with the Patrol Cars.  Mrs. Hall stated that 

there were three (3) companies putting together quotes.  Mrs. Hall also stated that the 

preliminary looked to be $3000 less than the original quote. 

- Mr. Lawrence stated that he had been on the GMA Training Board for 5 yrs and that he 

had received a couple of awards.  Mr. Lawrence also asked that Advanced Disposal be 

put back on the agenda for the work session. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 



Forsyth City Council meeting – July 07, 2015 Page 6 
 

 

- Mable Bentley – came before the Council and stated that if they were going to go 

along with the splitting of the property tax bill to wait until next year.  Ms. Bentley also 

wanted to thank the Council and Mayor for lowering the application fee for Kynette 

Park and thought it was a good thing for the community.  

 

ADJOURN 

 There being no additional business to discuss, Mr. Stroud offered a motion to adjourn.  

Seconded by Mr. Jones, the motion carried unanimously, (voting in the affirmative were Dodd, 

Stroud, Goolsby, Jones, Wilson and Lawrence).  The meeting adjourned at 7:50PM.  

Submitted by: 

 

Kristal S. Dunn 

Interim City Clerk 


